
 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, APRIL 15, 2014 

   Page 1 of 3  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
04/15/2014 
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, April 15, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 
a. Minutes for Approval:   

 
1) March 18, 2014 Special Workshop  
2) March 18, Regular Town Council Meeting 

 
b. Encroachment Agreement, 13105 Raymond Road (Swerdlin) (Town Attorney Cirullo) 

 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 

1 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, APRIL 15, 2014 

   Page 2 of 3  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
04/15/2014 
 

 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Christine Davis, Vice President, Loxahatchee Groves PTO, requesting consideration of a 
tax deductible monetary donation from the Town, as a sponsor for the Loxahatchee 
Groves Elementary School’s Annual Spring Carnival and Silent Auction. Donations 
must be decided on or received by May 2, 2014.   

 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS – NONE 
 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS - NONE 

 
 
7.  ORDINANCES  
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03  2nd/FINAL READING/PUBLIC HEARING (Livestock Waste 
(haulers)  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO COMMERCIAL HAULING OF LIVESTOCK 
WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN;  PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
PERMITS AND PERMIT FEES; PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSAL OF LIVESTOCK 
WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR PERMITTED HOURS OF 
COMMERCIAL HAULING OF  LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN;  
PROVIDING FOR REQUIRED RECORDS AND AUDITING OF SUCH RECORDS BY 
THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR CHANGES TO LIVESTOCK WASTE 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; EXEMPTING LIVESTOCK WASTE SELF-HAULERS AS DEFINED 
HEREIN FROM THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
9.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion relative to Future Town Management Services  
 

b. Financial System Software Request for Proposal (RFP)  
 

2 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, APRIL 15, 2014 

   Page 3 of 3  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
04/15/2014 
 

c. Discussion of Road Improvement Policy 
 

d. Approval of Piggyback Procurement – North Florida Emulsions (NFE)  
 

e. Speed Humps (discussion continued for 04/01/2014 Town Council Meeting - no back up 
provided) 
 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Gas Tax Map Modification  

 
b. Marianne Miles, 3413 B Road, requesting consideration for residents who have direct 

access on and off B Road to have OGEM placed on that portion of the Road. (Vice-
Mayor Jarriel)  

 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   

• Request for Town Council to conduct a closed door meeting pursuant to 
Section 286.011(8), Florida Statutes for pending case of Loxahatchee Groves 
adv. Day, Palm Beach County Circuit Court Case # 50 2012 CA 
014543XXXXMB. 

 
c. Town Council Members 
 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for May 6, 2014. 
 
 
 
 

Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

3 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

Consent Agenda 
Minutes: 

 
March 18, 2014 Special Workshop 

March 18, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting 

 

 

 
 

4 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES 
 TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 

Page 1 of 4 
 
 

 

 
Town Council Special Workshop Minutes  
03/18/2014 

 

 
 

 
 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Special Workshop Meeting 

Tuesday, March 18, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. 
(To be followed by the Regular Town Council Meeting) 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 
 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) Town Manager Mark Kutney Vice 
Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 
MINUTES 

 

 
1.   OPENING 

 
a.   Call to Order & Roll Call 

 
Mayor Browning called the Special Workshop Meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.  In attendance were 
Mayor David Browning, Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, and Jim Rockett.  
Councilman Ryan Liang was not in attendance at this time.  Also in attendance were Town Manager 
Mark Kutney, Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, Finance Advisory Board Chair Lung Chiu, Vice-Chair 
Elise Ryan, Committee Members Cheryl Miller, Virginia Standish, and Ken Johnson.  Bill Underwood 
from Underwood Management Services Group was also in attendance. 
 

b.   Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning  
 
c.   Approval of Agenda – no action 
 

Mayor Browning turned the meeting over to the FAAC (Financial Advisory & Audit Committee) for 
their report. 

5 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES 
 TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 

 
Town Council Special Workshop Minutes  
03/18/2014 

 

Chair Chiu opened the FAAC portion of the meeting and noted that 2.a. of the Agenda was the topic of 
discussion for this evening. 
 
Mayor Browning interjected to let the record show that Councilman Liang arrived at 6:08 p.m. 
 
Bill Underwood, for Underwood Management Services Group provided a small contextual background 
of where the Town is at, and what has occurred in the recent past.  What the Town has is a Fiscal 
Policy, Council adopted, and in that Policy it was stated the Town will provide funding for public 
services on a fair and equitable bases and shall not discriminate in providing such services on that 
basis.  Some roads people are paying for.  The Town has approved payment for roads, and some of the 
roads people have not contributed to at all.  He stated the purpose is to get equity for all, then move 
forward and pay for the roads in the future.  When Council spends the $1.8 million budgeted CIP 
(Capital Improvement Program) monies, it will be critical when those monies are gone. He continued 
to do an overview of the Capital Improvement Plan.  The equity issue is directed to Council, so the 
committee is looking for guidance. 
 
Vice-Chair Ryan simply wanted to know from Council who will be paying for the roads.  Once that is 
determined, the Committee can make the numbers work.   
 
2.   Consideration for Council to reconsider, review and revise the $1.8 mil Capital Budget 

for Fiscal Year 2014. (Recommendation from the Financial Advisory and Audit Committee 
(FAAC)). 

 
a.   Determine  Policy  for  Payment  Options  for  Improvements  to  Roads  (Town  pays  vs 
Landowners pay vs cost share). 

 
Councilman Rockett opened the discussion with an explanation of how Council has been working 
towards being equitable for all the residents concerning road matters. 
 
Councilman Liang agreed that Bryan Road, Compton Road, and Marcella Boulevard, should be 
considered as maintenance roads.  As far and any future Capital Improvement Projects the Town 
should consider how to fund the projects on the current list as well as future projects, possibly through 
a loan or a bond. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel feels the town needs to pay for the roads, when the Town can afford it.  All 
residents should pay the assessments equally.  It seems the Town’s revenue will be on the incline as 
new commercial projects are added to the Town’s tax base.  Every year the Town’s bank account has 
increased.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel appreciates the Committee’s game plan for Capital Improvements.  He 
then explained Council’s plan for Capital Improvements. 
 
Councilman Goltzené addressed policy options.  He spoke of having a bond issue and/or changing the 
Charter, if necessary, through a referendum to allow the residents to make decisions on paying for 
roads.  He will not commit to raising anyone’s taxes.   
 

6 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES 
 TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 

 
Town Council Special Workshop Minutes  
03/18/2014 

 

Mayor Browning noted that the Town was able to accumulate a nice nest egg from the beginning of 
incorporation, by taking in more than the Town was spending.  During this time the Town is spending 
more than it is taking in, and he is not aware of many residents who are willing to encourage more 
commercial projects to get a tax base.  Mayor Browning agreed with Councilman Goltzené for a Town-
wide referendum; and address possibly assessing one hundred ($100.00) per acre per everyone who 
lives in Loxahatchee Groves. 
 
Bill Underwood, Underwood Management Services Group, stated the Town could do an assessment by 
acre, or any other means, as the Town has flexibility in the choice. 
 
Councilman Rockett noted commercial properties that are within the Town’s tax base. 
 
Councilman Goltzené asked if the Town could have Special Taxing District on commercial. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated it would take action by Council and there would have to be defined 
areas. He also noted that tax base monies from a particular district would have to stay in that district. 
  
Committee Member Standish pointed out a document she left on the dais which referenced a 
Community Development Block Grant Program.  She further explained options which can be explored 
for funding.  She also feels the life of a bond will outlive the life of the product in reference to OGEM 
roads, and for Council to determine what they should be offering for better options. 
 
Committee Member Johnson suggested Council look at commercial projects, such as the College 
(Palm Beach State College) and determine how much impact they will have on other roads in the 
Town.  Considering time frames for construction, he also suggested a “pay as you go program”. 
 
Chair Chiu summarized.  He noted at least four (4) or five (5) Council members were in agreement for 
a Bond referendum; he would hope that Council would give clear direction, framework, and time line 
so the Committee/Management could move forward in order to provide an equitable solution for all the 
residents.  
 
Mayor Browning stated Council was looking for suggestions from the Committee. 
 
Bill Underwood wanted Council agreement that the Town needs to be in the business of “doing” roads.  
Once that is completed the Committee/Management will devise a methodology of getting it 
accomplished. 
 
Chair Chiu asked if legal counsel could make suggestions for a solution, perhaps in a resolution.  Also 
on behalf of the Committee, he expressed congratulations to Councilman Goltzené for his second term 
in office. 
 
It was consensus of Council to bring discussion of a referendum back to the Town Council as an action 
item during the April 15, 2014 Town Council Meeting. 

7 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES 
 TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 

 
Town Council Special Workshop Minutes  
03/18/2014 

 

Frank Schiola, 13434 Marcella Boulevard, stated whatever Council decided to do, and whatever 
monies are acquired, the funds need to go into a separate account for roads only. 
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road, spoke on funding for roads, and referenced the Florida Statutes state that the 
Florida legislature recognizes that when significant tax exempt entities, like colleges, come into a 
town, they can have an impact that needs to be recognized on an ongoing basis.  This can be 
accomplished by agreements. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzene made a motion to adjourn the Special Workshop.  Councilman 
Rockett seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
3.   ADJOURNMENT  

 
There being no further business coming before the Special Workshop, Mayor Browning adjourned the 
meeting at 7:03 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk  David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved during the April 15, 2014, Town Council Meeting. 
 
 

8 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

susan E
Typewritten Text



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
   Page 1 of 6  

 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/18/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, March 18, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

(Or As Soon As Possible following the Special Workshop) 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

   
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

MINUTES 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m.  In attendance were Mayor David 
Browning, Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, Ryan Liang, and Jim 
Rockett.  Also in attendance were Town Manager Mark Kutney, Town Planning Consultant 
Jim Fleischmann, Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, and Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple. 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
Councilman Rockett questioned why the speed hump information was not on the agenda. 
 
Town Manager Kutney stated speed humps will be a topic on the next Town Council Agenda. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to accept the Agenda as presented.  Vice-
Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
d. SWEARING IN OF COUNCIL MEMBER TOM GOLTZENÉ (SEAT 5). 

Councilman Goltzené was sworn into office by Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple. 
 

9 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
   Page 2 of 6  

 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/18/2014 
 

Mayor Browning called for a brief recess at 7:10 p.m., to have cake in acknowledgement of 
Councilman Goltzené taking office for an additional three (3) years. 
 
Note:  Appointment of Mayor and Vice-Mayor will be conducted during the April 1, 2014, 
Town Council Meeting. (Pursuant to the Town Charter. Section 2(2)(a)) 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA   

 
a. Minutes for Approval: February 18, 2014 

 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilman 
Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS - NONE 
 

  
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS – NONE 
 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS - NONE 

 
 
7.  ORDINANCES 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03: FIRST READING (Livestock Waste - Haulers) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO HAULING OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN 
THE TOWN;  PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING FOR PERMITS AND 
PERMIT FEES; PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSAL OF LIVESTOCK WASTE ONLY 
AT APPROVED DISPOSAL SITES WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR 
PERMITTED HOURS OF HAULING LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN;  
PROVIDING FOR REQUIRED RECORDS AND AUDITING OF SUCH RECORDS BY 
THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR CHANGES TO LIVESTOCK WASTE 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

10 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
   Page 3 of 6  

 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/18/2014 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo explained the background of Ordinance No. 2014-03 and Ordinance No. 
2014-04.  Notification letters were sent to both haulers and property owners.  He then reviewed 
context of the Ordinances No. 2014-03. 
 
Town Council discussed the pros and cons of the regulations within this ordinance. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo will take into consideration the concerns of Council, rewrite the 
regulations, and bring Ordinance No. 2014-03 back for first reading. 
 
Member of the audience came to the podium to discuss stopping Wellington haulers from 
coming into Loxahatchee Groves, as the Town does not have enough staff for Code 
Enforcement.  Council was requested to be clear and concise.  There is a cost saving factor to 
having manure hauled onto personal property for ground amities, as much of the soil is sand 
based.  The Town needs to keep a prospective, and to monitor, and not contaminate the canals. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo will rewrite Ordinance No. 2014-03 as per Council direction, and bring 
the ordinance back for first reading. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated Ordinance No. 2014-04 affects the ULDC (Unified Land 
Development Code) and will have to go the Planning and Zoning Board for review.  
 
Mayor Browning called for a five minute break, 8:42 – 8:45 p.m. 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04: FIRST READING (Livestock Waste - Property 

Owners) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO DEPOSITING OF LIVESTOCK WASTE 
WITHIN THE TOWN; AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE BY AMENDING PART III ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” 
ARTICLE 50 ENTITLED “PUBLIC NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 50-
035 TO BE ENTITLED “USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE;” PROVIDING FOR 
DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING THAT DEPOSITING OF LIVESTOCK WASTE IS A 
PUBLIC NUISANCE EXCEPT AS PROVIDED BY THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR 
REGISTRATION AND PERMITS, REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS ON THE 
DELIVERY AND USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE REPORTING AND NOTICE 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

11 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
   Page 4 of 6  

 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/18/2014 
 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo provided background on Ordinance No 2014-04 for waste hauling 
concerning property owners.  He also referenced the Good Neighbor Guidelines. 
 
Council reviewed the contents of Ordinance No. 2014-04 and advised Town Attorney Cirullo of 
changes that needed to be made. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo provided a recap of changes. 
 
Several members of the audience voiced their thoughts on the subject. 
 
Mayor Browning called for a short break 9:25 – 9:30 p.m. 
 

c. ORDINANCES – PUBLIC HEARING 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2013-11 – SECOND AND FINAL READING / PUBLIC 
HEARING  (Historical Legacy) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, RELATING TO HISTORICAL LEGACY USES AND APPROVALS; AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 
(ULDC), TO AMEND SECTION 75-035, ENTITLED “USES AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2006” TO ADD 
THE TERM HISTORICAL LEGACY TO THE SECTION TITLE;  TO SPECIFY THE 
CATEGORY OF SPECIAL EXCEPTION NECESSARY FOR CERTAIN USES IN THE ZONING 
CATEGORY; TO REQUIRE THAT THE  PROPERTY ON WHICH THE USE IS LOCATED 
SHALL HAVE BEEN OWNED AND SUBJECT TO A HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION IN THE 
NAME OF THE OPERATOR; TO REQUIRE THAT THE USE DOES NOT PRESENT A 
THREAT TO PUBLIC HEALTH;  TO REQUIRE THAT THE USE  IS NOT CURRENTLY THE 
SUBJECT OF A TOWN CODE ENFORCEMENT ACTION; TO REQUIRE THAT THE 
OWNER-OPERATOR SUBMIT AN AFFIDAVIT STIPULATING TO COMPLIANCE WITH 
CERTAIN CONDITIONS;  TO REQUIRE REVIEW AND INSPECTION BY THE TOWN; 
PROVIDING THAT CERTAIN USES ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR APPROVAL UNDER THIS 
SECTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 
FOR CODIFICATION; AND, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Ordinance No. 2013-11; reported changes directed by Council, 
had been made, and notice for requirements are now included. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzene made a motion to approved Ordinance No. 2013-11 on second 
reading.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.   
 
Mayor Browning opened the Public hearing at 9:31 p.m.  There being no Public Comments, Mayor 
Browning closed the Public hearings at 9:32 p.m. 

12 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
   Page 5 of 6  

 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/18/2014 
 

 
Upon roll call vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 
 

a. Gas Tax Maps Report 
 
Town Manger Kutney reported the Gas Tax maps were received during the last League of Cities 
Meeting he attended.  After any requests on road usage, the adjustments will be due by April 30, 
2014, which will give Council a chance for input during the April 1, 2014 and April 15, 2014 
Town Council Meetings. 
Town Manager Kutney reported the Town Engineers are about ninety-eight (98%) to ninety-nine 
percent (99%) complete on their plans for Compton Road, Bryan Road, and Marcella Boulevard.   
 
Town Manager Kutney received an email from Mary Mc Nicholas concerning speeding vehicles 
Folsom Road.  He asked Council if there was anything else they would like to do other than 
PBSO (Palm Beach Sheriffs’ Office) coverage.  The Council answered in the negative, but 
advised Town Manager Kutney to notify PBSO of the situation. 
 
Mr. Kutney reported on the traffic signal at Okeechobee Road and D Road.  He received 
notification that there was no warrant for the signal.  Simmons and White, Town Traffic 
Engineers, will be meeting with George Webb, Palm Beach County Engineer personally to find 
out about the warrant so there is a definitive answer. 
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS 

 
a. Auditor Retention Letter  

 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve the new agreement with the Town’s 
External Auditors, Nowlen, Holt and Miner.  Councilman Rockett seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion followed concerning the amendments.  
 
Upon vote, the motion was approved 5/0. 
  
10. NEW BUSINESS - NONE 

 
 

11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

Frank Schiola, 13434 Marcella Boulevard, reported that the lady who worked for Waste Pro was 
killed, and her husband lost his left leg in a crash.  On Folsom Road, the night duty PBSO 
Deputy is getting writer’s cramp. 

13 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
   Page 6 of 6  

 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/18/2014 
 

 
Nina Corning, 2834 E Road, also spoke on the subject of traffic, and suggested looking at 
Okeechobee Boulevard and maybe E Road.   Concerning water, there is suspicion of 
construction materials being dumped in Loxahatchee Groves 

 
b. Town Attorney   
 

Town Attorney Cirullo announced “Go Gators” and congratulated Councilman Goltzené. 
 
c. Town Council Members 
 

Councilman Rockett thanked everyone for coming, and for them to have a good night. 
 
Councilman Liang felt this was a very productive meeting, and also announced “Go Gators”. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel congratulated Councilman Goltzené. 
 
Councilman Goltzené thanked everyone for their congratulations, and for staying. 
 
Mayor Browning also extended his congratulations to Councilman Goltzené, and thanked 
everyone. 

 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Browning adjourned the meeting at 
9:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for April 1, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________             ____________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk    David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved at the April 15, 2014, Town Council Meeting. 

14 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.b. 

Consent Agenda 

Swerdlin Road Issues 

 

 
 

15 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



16 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



17 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



18 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



19 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



20 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



21 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



22 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 4.a. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Christine Davis – Vice President 

Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School PTO 

 
 

23 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 5.a. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

NONE 

 
 

25 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 6. 

RESOLUTIONS 

None 

 
 

26 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No’s. 2014-03 (Waste Haulers) 

(2nd Reading) 

 

 
 

27 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2014-03 (livestock waste haulers) 04-02-2014 (100001xC4B6A) Page 1 of 10 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO 
COMMERCIAL HAULING OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN 
THE TOWN;  PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR PERMITS AND PERMIT FEES; PROVIDING FOR THE 
DISPOSAL OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN; 
PROVIDING FOR PERMITTED HOURS OF COMMERCIAL 
HAULING OF  LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN;  
PROVIDING FOR REQUIRED RECORDS AND AUDITING OF 
SUCH RECORDS BY THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR 
CHANGES TO LIVESTOCK WASTE REGULATIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; EXEMPTING LIVESTOCK WASTE SELF-
HAULERS AS DEFINED HEREIN FROM THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 6, 2010, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

adopted Ordinance 2010-003, to provide requirements for permits by landowners and transporters 

of manure and horse bedding (livestock waste) in the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, on April 3, 2012, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2012-03, which 

amended and restated Ordinance 2010-03, to provide for properties eligible to receive manure and 

horse bedding materials (livestock waste), amend permit requirements and provide regulations on 

how such materials are used on eligible properties; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has heard concerns from Town Management and the public 

relating to the current permitting process and continued abuses by commercial haulers and property 

owners for dumping manure and horse droppings (livestock waste) on properties within the Town; 

and,  

28 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2014-03 (livestock waste haulers) 04-02-2014 (100001xC4B6A) Page 2 of 10 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council continues to be concerned with water quality within the 

drainage canals in the Town, and has heard from residents with scientific and academic 

backgrounds that raised phosphorous levels are possible from continued abuse of manure and horse 

bedding (livestock waste) by commercial haulers and property owners within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, improper commercial hauling and disposal of Livestock Waste is a public 

nuisance, attracting flies and emanating odors to nearby properties; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that increased regulation of commercial livestock 

waste haulers is necessary to prevent illegal dumping and pollution, and avoid the creation of public 

nuisances within the Town; and,   

 WHEREAS, the provisions of this Ordinance shall replace and supersede the requirements 

for livestock waste haulers in Ordinance 2012-03.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption 

hereof.      

 Section 2. Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(a) Approved disposal site: A parcel of real property for which a Town, county or state 

registration or permit has been issued for the disposal and/or processing of livestock 

waste, as amended from time to time, and/or a plot of land that is conducting bona fide 

agricultural activities in accordance with F.S. § 193.461. 

(b) Bona fide agricultural purposes:  means farming, pasture, grove, or forestry operations, 

including horticulture, floriculture, viticulture, dairy, livestock, poultry, bee and 

29 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2014-03 (livestock waste haulers) 04-02-2014 (100001xC4B6A) Page 3 of 10 

aquaculture, consistent with Section 823.14, Florida Statutes (Right to Farm) and Section 

570.02, Florida Statutes (Agriculture).                   

(c) Commercial livestock waste hauler: Person(s), firm(s), corporation(s), or other legal 

entit(ies) providing livestock waste removal or delivery services for a fee, or in exchange 

for payment, within the Town. 

(d) Composting: The process by which biological decomposition of organic solid waste is 

carried out under controlled aerobic conditions, and which stabilizes the organic fraction 

into a material which can easily and safely be stored, handled, and used in an 

environmentally acceptable manner for a period of 30 to 90 days.  

(e) Livestock: Grazing animals, such as cattle, horses, sheep, goats, other ruminants, swine, 

ostriches, emus and rheas, which are used for private use or commercial purposes, or as 

defined by F.S. § 585.01, as may be amended from time to time.  

(f) Livestock facility: Property under single ownership or control where livestock is raised 

and or boarded.  

(g) Livestock waste: Wastes composed of excreta of animals and residual materials that have 

been used for bedding, sanitary, or feeding purposes for such animals. For purposes of 

this ordinance, livestock waste that has been properly composted shall not be considered 

livestock waste.  

(h) Livestock waste self-hauler: Property owner or authorized representative providing 

Livestock waste removal services from their own property within the Town, or delivering 

Livestock waste to their own property within the Town from a location within the Town, 

for personal use only by the owner or tenant of the receiving property, using a vehicle 

with a capacity no greater than ten (10) cubic yards.  

30 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2014-03 (livestock waste haulers) 04-02-2014 (100001xC4B6A) Page 4 of 10 

(i) Livestock waste storage area: An area constructed of impermeable material such as 

concrete or asphalt; with an impermeable cover; or a mechanical storage container that 

can be sealed, lifted, and transported. 

(j) Load: approximately twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) cubic yards of Livestock Waste.  

(k) Public Nuisance:  the unreasonable, unwarranted and/or unlawful activity and/or use of 

property, which causes inconvenience or damage to others, either to individuals and/or to 

the general public. 

 Section 3. All Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers must comply with the 

requirements of this ordinance.   

 Section 4. Permitting Requirements. All Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers 

transporting Livestock Waste within the Town must obtain a permit from the Town prior to 

engaging in any hauling of Livestock Waste.   

(a) In obtaining the permit, the Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers will: 

1. Identify every property within the Town from which it will haul Livestock Waste, 

and every Approved Disposal Site (whether located within the Town or not) to 

which it will deliver Livestock Waste; 

2. Provide copies of all licenses and registrations for vehicles used for hauling 

Livestock Waste. 

3. Acknowledge on a form provided by the Town that (1) loads to be deposited 

within the Town originate from a Livestock Facility within the Town, or shows by 

separate affidavit its load originated from outside the State of Florida; (2) upon 

receipt of a request from a property owner within the Town for Livestock Waste, 

it will confirm prior to engaging in hauling that the Livestock Waste will be 

31 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2014-03 (livestock waste haulers) 04-02-2014 (100001xC4B6A) Page 5 of 10 

deposited within a Livestock waste storage area or used solely for bona fide 

agricultural purposes, and that the property owner has obtained the necessary 

permit from the Town; and (4) that it has read and reviewed this ordinance and 

agrees to its requirements and provisions, and will adhere to such in providing its 

hauling services. 

4. Pay the required fees for the permit. 

(b) An annual permit shall be valid from October 1 to September 30, and shall expire 

each September 30 regardless of the date it is issued.  Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers are 

responsible for the timely renewal of the annual permits.     

(c) The annual permit fee for a Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler shall be 

$500.00.  An annual permit shall permit the Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler to transport up 

to twenty (20) loads.  The permit fee shall be $2000.00 if a Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler 

transports Livestock Waste prior to obtaining a permit from the Town.       

(d) A Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler may transport in excess of twenty (20) 

loads, for a maximum of thirty (30) additional loads, at an additional fee of $40.00 per load, paid 

in advance to the Town.  Should the Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler fail to pay such fee in 

advance, the fee shall be $100.00 per load. 

(e) The fees set forth in this ordinance may be amended by the Town Council by 

resolution. 

(f) No permit shall be issued to a Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler who has not 

remedied previous violations of this Ordinance.  

32 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2014-03 (livestock waste haulers) 04-02-2014 (100001xC4B6A) Page 6 of 10 

 Section 5. Origin of Livestock Waste.  All Livestock Waste deposited at Approved 

disposal sites in the Town must originate from within the Town, or be shown by affidavit to have 

originated from outside the State of Florida. 

 Section 6. Approved disposal sites. Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers may 

deposit Livestock Waste only at Approved Disposal Sites for the purpose of composting in an 

approved composting area, or for bona fide agricultural purposes.     

 Section 7. Authorized Times for Hauling within the Town.  Hauling of Livestock 

Waste by Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers within the Town shall be permitted only 

between the hours of 9:00 am through 4:00 pm, Monday through Friday, except holidays as 

listed on the Town website. Hauling of Livestock Waste by Commercial Livestock Waste 

Haulers is prohibited at all other times.   

 Section 8. Required Records.      Hauling records shall be provided by Commercial 

Livestock Waste Haulers to the Town Manager each month, no later than the fifth (5th) business 

day of the month following the month for which the report is filed.  Hauling records shall 

identify the waste source, quantity in cubic yards, and the waste disposal site with quantity 

deposited in cubic yards within an approved site. Hauling records shall include signed load 

tickets or affidavits certifying the loads from both the source and disposal site owners. Failure to 

timely provide monthly hauling records shall result in the revocation of the permit. The Town 

reserves the right to audit the hauling record and load tickets from the generating properties and 

disposal sites which have been approved as a disposal site as defined herein.  The failure to 

cooperate with such audit shall result in the revocation of a permit.    

 Section 9. Changes to Regulations.   The hauling of Livestock Waste by 

Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers within the Town is a privilege, not a right.  The Town 

33 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2014-03 (livestock waste haulers) 04-02-2014 (100001xC4B6A) Page 7 of 10 

Council reserves the right to amend this Ordinance at any time, and any such amendments will 

apply to both future permits, and active permits unless specifically exempted by the Town 

Council.    

 Section 10. Revocation of Permits.  A Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler that 

violates any of the provisions of this ordinance shall have its permit revoked by the Town 

Manager.  Should a person violate this ordinance on more than one (1) occasion during a 

calendar year, that person shall not be granted a permit from the Town for a period of one (1) 

calendar year from the date of the last violation.   

 Section 11. Nuisance.  A violation of this ordinance is deemed by the Town Council 

to be a public nuisance. 

 Section 12. Violation of State Laws.  The Town Council specifically finds that a 

violation of this ordinance presents a public nuisance for purposes of enforcement of Section 

403.413, Florida Statutes, and law enforcement officers charged with the enforcement of state 

and local laws within the Town shall strictly enforce Section 403.413, Florida Statutes. Upon the 

issuance of a violation notice under Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or this ordinance, any 

permits issued by the Town to the Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler shall be suspended and 

the Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler shall cease all Livestock Waste hauling until such time 

as a hearing is conducted or the fines paid.    

 Section 13. Enforcement.  This ordinance shall be enforced as follows: 

(a) Law enforcement officers are authorized to enforce this ordinance.  In addition to 

penalties resulting from a violation of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, the fines for violations 

of this ordinance shall be: 

34 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2014-03 (livestock waste haulers) 04-02-2014 (100001xC4B6A) Page 8 of 10 

 

First Offense Second Offense Third Offense All Additional 
Offenses 

$100 $250 $400 $500 

 
(b) The Town may also file charges for any offense in a court with jurisdiction, in 

which case the penalty shall be a fine of $500, imprisonment not to exceed sixty (60) days, or 

both, for each violation of this ordinance.  The Town shall recover its costs of prosecution, 

including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs for law enforcement and Town 

employees. 

(c) To the extent authorized by law, the Town Administration is authorized to use the 

Town’s Code Enforcement process to enforce violations of this ordinance where a law 

enforcement officer has not otherwise issued violations of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or 

of this ordinance.  In such instances, the fine shall be the maximum permitted by law.  The Town 

shall recover its costs of prosecution, including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs 

for law enforcement and Town employees. 

(d) Each day a violation remains, and each haul for which there is no permit, 

constitutes a separate violation of this ordinance.   

 Section 14.  Exemption of Livestock waste self-hauler.  Livestock waste self-haulers 

are exempt from this ordinance.  

 Section 15. Effect on Ordinance 2012-03.  The provisions herein as to regulations for 

haulers (referred to in Ordinance 2012-03 as transporters) of Livestock Waste, referred to in 

Ordinance 2012-03 as “manure and horse bedding,” supersedes and replaces regulations as to 

haulers in Ordinance 2012-03. Regulations relating to property owners and the use of Livestock 

35 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2014-03 (livestock waste haulers) 04-02-2014 (100001xC4B6A) Page 9 of 10 

Waste on Property within the Town shall remain in effect except to the extent in conflict with 

this Ordinance.   

 Section 16. Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All Ordinances or part of Ordinances in 

conflict herewith are in the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 17. Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word 

of this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 Section 18. Codification.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of this 

ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

 Section 19. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage and adoption.  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
____________________, 2014. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2014.       
              

36 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2014-03 (livestock waste haulers) 04-02-2014 (100001xC4B6A) Page 10 of 10 

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  
GROVES, FLORIDA  
 

 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet Whipple, Town Clerk    Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 

37 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.  

ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE 

 (No Backup) 
 

38 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.a.  

OLD BUSINESS 

Town Management Services 

39 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



40 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



41 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



42 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



43 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



44 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



45 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



46 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



47 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



48 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



49 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



50 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



52 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



54 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



55 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



56 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



57 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



58 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



59 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



60 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



61 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



62 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



63 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



64 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



65 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



66 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



68 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



69 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



70 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



71 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



72 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



73 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



74 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



75 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



76 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



77 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



78 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



79 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



80 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



81 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



82 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



83 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



84 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



85 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



86 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



87 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



88 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



89 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.b. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Financial System Software 

90 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

                        

 

 

RFP NO. 2014-01   

Integrated Muncipal Financial System Software as a Service (SaaS) 

and related implementation services 

 

14579 Southern Boulevard 
Suite 2 

Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

91 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page -  1 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

                                              
 

Request for Proposal 
Software as a Service (SaaS) 

Integrated Municipal Financial System 
 

 
The Town of Loxahatchee Groves (“Town”) requests interested parties to submit sealed  
Proposals (RFP) for an integrated Municipal Financial System Software as a Service 
(SaaS) and related implementation services.  
 
Hard copies of the Request for Proposals will be available Monday through Friday, 9:00 
AM to 4:00 PM at the Town Hall Offices at the following address: 
                                                         

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
14579 Southern Boulevard, Suite 2 

Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
561-793-2418 

 
Sealed Proposals will be received by the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Town Clerk’s 
Office located at 14579 Southern Boulevard, Suite 2, Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 33470 
for the following: 
 
 

RFP No:  2014-01      
 
Proposal Title:  Municipal Financial System Software as a Services (SaaS)   
                          and related implementation services 
 

           Proposal Submission Deadline: May 23, 2014, 2:00PM 
 
 
RFP OPENING WILL OCCUR IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE SUBMISSION 
DEADLINE. 
 
 
This Request for Proposals (RFP) is available at www.onvia.com or can be downloaded at 
the Town’s website at:  www.loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov . 
 
 
 
PUBLISH:  Palm Beach Post  
                 April 18, 2014  and April 21, 2014               

 

92 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.demandstar.com/
http://www.loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov/


SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page -  2 

 

 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL SOFTWARE AS A SERVICE (SaaS)  
 INTEGRATED MUNICIPAL SYSTEM SOFTWARE  3 

 
 

1.0 PROJECT OVERVIEW  5 
 
 

2.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION  6 
 
 

3.0 INSTRUCTION TO PROPOSERS  7 
 
 

4.0 AWARDED CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITIES  9 
 
 

5.0 PROPOSAL FORMAT    10 
 
5.1 – Cost Proposal 
5.2 – Contractor Information 
5.3 – Exceptions and Special Considerations 
5.4 – Completed Requirements SECTION 5 
5.5 – Installation and Training 
5.6 – Product Documentation 

 
 

6.0 PRICING AND PAYMENT TERMS  13 
 
 

7.0 SYSTEM ACCEPTANCE  14 
 
 
  8.0  ADDITIONAL FORMS          
                                                                                                     15          
     8.1 - Proposal Acknowledgement Form 

         8.2 - Municipal Proposal Form 
         8.3 - Proposal Proposal Form 
         8.4 - Certificate of Authority 
         8.5 - Insurance Requirements 
         8.6 - Affirmative Action Policy  
         8.7 - Non-Collusive Affidavit 

          
 
 
  

93 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page -  3 

 

 
 

Request for Proposal 
Software as a Service (SaaS)  

Integrated Municipal Financial 
System  

 
 
 
 

DATE: April 1, 2014                                                                      RFP No. 2014-01 
 
The Town of Loxahatchee Groves is accepting sealed proposals from qualified municipal 
software firms to provide an integrated municipal financial system Software as a Service and 
related implementation services. 

 
Sealed proposals for an integrated Municipal Financial System Software as a Service (SaaS) 
and related implementation services will be received at the Town Hall Office at 14579 Southern 
Boulevard, Suite 2, Loxahatchee Groves, Florida until 2:00PM after which time proposals will 
be publicly opened and read. 

 
MARK ENVELOPES: 
  
RFP No. 2014-01 
 
Proposal Name:  Municipal Financial System Software as a Service (SaaS) and related      
                            implementation services.   
 
Proposal Submission Date:  May 23, 2014, 2:00 PM 
 
Proposals shall be submitted in accordance with the attached specifications.  In submitting 
your proposals, your company shall use the attached specifications and proposal forms.  
Proposal responses are not accepted via fax transmission. 

 
All proposals shall specify terms and show delivery dates.  The Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals or part thereof, to advertise for 
proposals a second time, and to waive any minor irregularities in any RFP’s.   
 
The Town of Loxahatchee Groves intends to reserve unto itself all rights to contract for 
whatever arrangement it may deem to be most favorable to the interests of the Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

94 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page -  4 

 

FURTHER INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS 

 
Any and all proposals must be delivered to the TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 14759 
Southern Boulevard, Suite 2, Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470. If more than one proposal is 
submitted, a separate proposal form must be used for each. Unless otherwise specified in the 
RFP document the Town reserves the right to accept any item in the RFP on an individual 
basis. 
 
Municipalities are exempt from Florida State Sales taxes.  Do not include such taxes in the 
proposal figure.  The Town will furnish the successful PROPOSER with tax exemption 
certificates when requested. 
 
Completed forms may be duplicated as required.  Seven (7) copies and two (2) CD or DVD 
electronic format in Microsoft Doc or Adobe PDF of the complete package shall be submitted 
at the time of proposal submission. 
 
TIMELY SUBMITTALS:  Late submittals will not be accepted. 
 
All items shall be F.O.B. delivered in accordance with specifications if applicable. 

 
Forms are enclosed or obtainable at the Town Hall offices or Town’s Website at 
www.loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov.                                          

 
 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
PROPOSER is aware that the Inspector General of Palm Beach County has the authority to 
investigate and audit matters relating to the negotiation and performance of this Invitation to 
Proposal, and in furtherance thereof may demand and obtain records and   testimony   from   
the   PROPOSER   and   its   subcontractors   and   lower   tier subcontractors.    PROPOSER  
understands  and  agrees  that  in  addition  to  all  other remedies  and  consequences  
provided  by  law,  failure  of  the  PROPOSER  or  its subcontractors or lower tier 
subcontractors to fully cooperate with the Inspector General  when requested will be deemed 
to be a breach of this contract. PROPOSER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by it or 
the TOWN as a result of any investigation by the Inspector General which results in an 
adverse determination caused by PROPOSER, its subcontractors or lower tier subcontractors. 

 
 
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 
 

Between the time of the formal opening of sealed proposals and the final proposal award, it  
shall  be  the  responsibility  of  the  PROPOSERS  to  request  information  they  might  need 
regarding such proposals. 

 
The acceptance of any proposal made pursuant to this invitation shall not be binding upon the 
Town until the agreement has been executed. 
 
LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
 
Any PROPOSER submitting a response to this Request for Proposals (RFP) must comply, if 
applicable, with Town of Loxahatchee Groves Ordinance No. 2009-01.  Copy of Ordinance No. 
2009-01 may be obtained from the Town Clerk’s Office, 14579 Southern Boulevard, Suite 2, 
Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 33470.   

 

95 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov/


SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page -  5 

 

 

                 
1.0 PROJECT OVERVIEW 

 
The Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FL is accepting sealed proposals from qualified companies 
to provide a fully integrated municipal financial system and implementation of Software as a 
Service (SaaS) in accordance with the specifications contained in the Request for Proposals 
(RFP). 
 
The Town had its first Loxahatchee Groves Town Council inaugurated on March 12, 2007.  
The Town has a current population of approximately 3,200 residents within the almost 13 
square mile Town limits.  The Town has no employees, but has a contract for management 
services, which is paid from its annual operating budget of about $1.8 million.  The Town has 
three governmental funds, General Fund, Transportation Fund, and Capital Improvement 
Fund.  The Town also has one proprietary fund for Solid Waste.  Loxahatchee Groves does 
not have a utility operation.  Loxahatchee Groves has neither technology department nor its 
own hardware; the Town does have personal computers with internet access.   
 
The Town does not intend to purchase hardware or software but is seeking qualified vendors 
to supply Software as a Service (SaaS) contract that provides secure software services that is 
accessible at the software supplier’s location.  The system should have redundancy to protect 
the data the Town will provide in an industrial strength data center that complies with SAS 70 
Type II standards.   
 
The software applications identified later in this request must comply with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP), and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
promulgations.  Data from the Town’s PC’s to the PROPOSER’S data center should be 
encrypted during transmission between the Town and the data center.   
 
The Town is requesting proposals and prices for 2 concurrent licenses (seats) which will allow 
the Town’s staff to input data elements, and print both reports and accounts payables checks 
on local multi-purpose copier, printer, scanner.      

 
The Town of Loxahatchee Groves plans to contract for Software as a Service (SaaS) its 
municipal software system. The schedule for this project is anticipated to be as follows:  
 
Issue Request for Proposals (RFP):       April 16, 2014  
Pre-proposal meeting:        None                        
Last Date for TOWN to receive inquiries:   May8, 2014  
RFP Submission Date:      May 23, 2014 
Demo Presentation of selected PROPOSERS begin:      TBA 
Selection of Software by FAAC:    May 27, 2014   
Town Council Contract approval:     June 3, 2014  
Implementation begins:      TBA 
Implementation ends:      TBA 
 
Office hours to the public are 9 AM until 4:00 PM Monday through Friday, excepting holidays.

96 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page - 6 

 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

 
For purposes of this proposal, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves will hereby be referred to as "Town" and 
the private software firm shall hereby be referred to as "PROPOSER or Contractor." The Town requests 
proposals for the installation/implementation, configuration, initial training of an integrated Municipal 
Finance Software System which is provided as a SaaS system and hereby is referred to as “System”.  The 
goal is to implement a system that will allow for greater efficiency, effectiveness, and redundancy. 

This SaaS RFP will ideally provide the following services: 
 
General Ledger that includes standard reporting features 
Budgeting/Appropriations 
Purchasing/Encumbrance Reporting 
Accounts Payable 
Fixed Assets/Capital Projects 
Accounts Receivable/Invoicing 
Cash Receipting 
Grant/Project Accounting 

 
 

The Town expects all necessary design, installation, conversion, and training be covered in the response 
for this proposal. 

 
Installation/implementation and training costs should be included in the cost.  A high level of 
implementation and training hours should be assumed, as there is limited Town staff available. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

97 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page - 7 

 

 
3.0 INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS 
 
Official Document: The Town of Loxahatchee Groves is officially distributing this proposal document 
through the Town offices, Town website, and Onvia. Copies of documents obtained from any other source 
are not considered official copies. Only those Contractors who obtain proposal documents from the Town, 
its website, or Onvia system are assured access to receive addendum information, if issued. Should you 
obtain this document from a source other than the sources indicated; it is recommended that you register 
with the Town, or on the Onvia site at www.onvia.com. 

 
Submission of a proposal indicates that you agree with the requirements and have met the specifications  
of  this  RFP,  unless  you  specifically  express  an  objection  by  noting objection in a section of the 
proposal labeled “Exceptions and Special Considerations”. Any changes or clarifications made to this RFP 
subsequent to its release will be posted on the Town’s website listed as “Addendum 1”, “Addendum 2”, etc. 
There will be no pre-proposal meeting. 

 
Seven paper copies and two electronic copies of the sealed proposal shall be submitted bearing the name 
of the PROPOSER and clearly endorsed to read: 

 
“RFP No. 2014-01 for Municipal Financial Systems Software 
Attention: Town Clerk 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
14579 Southern Boulevard, Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
 
no later than 2:00 PM EST, Friday, May 23, 2014. Any document submitted after the due date and time 
will be rejected for not meeting the specifications of this RFP. 

 
All inquiries concerning this RFP should be in writing, or emailed to:  mkutney@loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov. 
All inquiries must be received at least fifteen (15) days prior to the proposal due date in order to have 
sufficient time to respond back to all PROPOSERs.  Exceptions or deviations from the specifications 
stated in this RFP must be clearly identified and noted in a section titled “Exceptions and Special 
Considerations.”  
 
In addition, the Town is open to any special software applications or suggestions that you believe would 
be of benefit to the Town. These should be provided in “Exceptions and Special Considerations” section. It 
should not replace the specifications in this RFP. 

 
Quoted proposals must remain valid for 120 days from proposal opening.  The contractor must include all 
completed Proposal Forms included in the RFP.  It is the responsibility of the PROPOSER(S) to 
understand all details of this RFP. The PROPOSER(S), by submitting a proposal indicates a full 
understanding of all details and specifications of this RFP, and is responsible for any costs incurred in 
responding to the proposal. 

 
Alternative proposals departing from the specifications in this RFP will not be accepted.  PROPOSER(S) 
are encouraged to describe, in writing, software that is in full agreement with the request as well as 
suggested alternatives in sufficient detail to permit evaluation. PROPOSERS may be required to make 
oral presentations of their proposals. The Town will schedule these presentations if required and any 
presentations may be recorded. 

98 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.onvia.com/
mailto:mkutney@loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov


SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page - 8 

 

 
The PROPOSER(S) must be recognized as an authorized distributor, (if applicable) of the  proposed  
items  and  must  be  able  to  provide  turnkey  installation and implementation, training and maintenance 
of the System. 

 
Any proposal may be withdrawn up until the date and time set above for the opening of the proposals. Any 
proposals not so withdrawn shall constitute an irrevocable offer, for a period of 120 days, to offer the Town 
the services set forth in the proposal. A PROPOSER'S proposal shall be binding on the PROPOSER 120 
days from the time of opening of the PROPOSER'S response. Each person signing the proposal certifies 
that he/she: a) is the person in the PROPOSER'S organization responsible and authorized for the decision 
as to the prices being offered in the proposal. 

 
Documents contained in a PROPOSER'S proposal will be considered public and subject to applicable 
Florida laws, and review of the public if requested.   All PROPOSERS will be advised of a decision after it 
has been made by the Town. The Town reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, waive 
informalities, or accept any proposal, in whole or in part it deems to be in the Town’s best interest. The 
Town reserves the right to award the contract to the next most qualified Contractor if the successful 
Contractor does not execute a contract within (20) business days after the award of the proposal. 

 
The Town is not obligated to accept the lowest proposal(s). The Town reserves the right to request 
clarification of information submitted and to request additional information of one or more applicants. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

99 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page - 9 

 

 
 
 

4.0 AWARDED CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Contract: The PROPOSER whose proposal is accepted will be required to execute the contract within 
twenty (20) business days after receiving notice of such acceptance; and in case of refusal or failure to do 
so, may be considered to have abandoned all their rights and interests in the award and the contract may 
be awarded to another. 
 
The Contractor selected to provide the services requested herein shall be required to execute a contract 
with the Town, which shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
 
A.  The initial term of the Contract shall be for five (5) years. 

 
B. The Town shall have the option to extend the contract for two (2) additional, three (3) year periods at is 

sole discretion and at mutually acceptable terms and conditions.  
 

C. Extension of the term of the Contract beyond the initial period is an option of the Town to be exercised 
in its sole discretion and which does not confer any rights upon the respondent.    

 
The  awarded  Contractor  shall  appoint  a  Project  Manager  who  will  represent  the Contractor and 
manage the project. This individual shall remain on the project until completion, coordinate Contractor 
activities and report Contractor progress to Town in writing on at least a weekly basis or as requested. 

 
The Town intends that the specifications, contract and the accompanying documentation to describe and 
provide for a finished properly functioning system.   Contractor   will understand that the work herein 
described will be complete in every detail, although they do not mention every aspect necessarily 
involved.  Should any error or inconsistency appear in the RFP or any accompanying documentation, 
Contractor, before continuing with the work will mention the same to the Town for proper adjustment, and 
never will the Contractor continue with the work in uncertainty. 

 
PROPOSER  will  also  provide  information  on  the  software  version  level  of  each  module proposed 
and where the component is in its life cycle.  All documentation shall be maintained in current condition on 
Town's premises and be of the version installed. 
 
The awarded Contractor will assume responsibility for all services offered, regardless of the actual 
provider. The awarded Contractor will be the sole point of contact with regard to contractual matters, 
including payment of any and all charges resulting from the contract. 

 
Insurance:  
 
The Contractor will be required to furnish evidence of insurance within 20 days after notification of award 
to the Town Manager.  Information regarding any insurance requirements shall be directed to Mark 
Kutney, Town Manager at (561) 793-2418.   
 
The Contractor shall procure and maintain required insurance during the term of the contract. See 8.0 
Additional Forms; 8.5 Indemnification and Insurance Form. 

100 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page - 10 

 

 
 
 
5.0 PROPOSAL FORMAT 

 
 

Each PROPOSER shall format the proposal in tabbed sections as described below with each section 
clearly labeled. 

 
5.1 Cost Proposal and Proposal Form 

5.2 Contractor Information 

5.3 Exceptions and Special Considerations 

5.4 Required Capabilities 

5.5 Installation, Data Conversion 

5.6 Training 

5.7 Product information 

101 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page - 11 

 

5.1 – Cost Proposal 
 
This section should contain a completed Proposal Form found in 8.0 Additional Forms, 8.3 
Proposal Form. Include the signed Proposal Form in this section.  Please note that a listing of 
additional modules that you may want to quote that are not part of the base proposal requested 
shall be included in 5.0 Proposal Format, 5.3  Exceptions and Special Considerations only 
of the Proposal. 
 
5.2 – Contractor Information 
 
This section should contain a completed Proposal Acknowledgement Cover Page found in 8.0 
Additional Forms, 8.1 Proposal Acknowledgement Cover Page.   
 
All  of  the  below questions/requirements  shall  be  addressed  in  addition  to  any  other 
information you would like to provide.  Please provide the following Contractor information: 
(Local is defined as in Florida.)  
 

1. Tax ID 
2. Name of Company: 
3. Address: 
4. Phone: 
5. Web address:  
6. Headquarters Location: 
7. Contract Manager Name, phone and email:  
8. Number of Proposed SaaS Systems Installed: 
9. Number of Proposed SaaS Systems Installed at Municipalities:  
10. Name Municipality:  
11. Total Number of SaaS Systems Installed: 

 
12. Does the PROPOSER maintain the product or use business partners? 

Explain.  
 

13. Does the PROPOSER maintain a support call-in center for problems? 
14. Does the PROPOSER provide on-site assistance if it is required? 
15. Does the PROPOSER maintain a web portal for customers to access technical support 

and documentation? Please provide access to this site so Town may review. 
16. Software Support Business Hours (Eastern Standard Time) 
17. Describe relevant experience of the PROPOSER’s personnel that will be implementing 

the software. 
18. What is the median size of your client base (measured by population)? 

 
19. Please provide at least three (3) references of current customers for which you have 

installed SaaS Municipal Software Systems. These customers should be of similar size 
and complexity as what is being proposed.  Generic references are not acceptable.   
 
A. Include name of client, contact name, phone number and year of installation.  
B. Provide a complete customer list for the last three years. 

 
20. Please provide evidence of the financial stability of your company. To be considered as 

a final contender in this award, you may be asked to submit financial statements. 
21. Is there any plan for discussion for a change in ownership of the entity? 

102 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page - 12 

 

22. Is there any plan or discussion of bankruptcy or any event that would be negative for the 
entity? 

 
23. Has your company had any contract terminated for cause during the last 5 years? If so, 

please provide details of each such occurrence. 
 

5.3 – Exceptions and Special Considerations 
 
Exceptions or deviations from the specifications stated in this RFP must be clearly identified. 
Any stated requirements that your proposal does not meet must be clearly noted in this section.  
If an exception is not listed, it will be understood by Town and Contractor that the requirement 
will be met under the general understanding and pricing quoted under Section 5.1 Cost 
Proposal. 
 
The Town is open to any additional applications that you believe would be of benefit to the 
Town. It should not replace these specifications. Include additional applications in this section. 
Quoted price for additional applications should be included.   If the Contractor prefers to provide 
the server hardware and software, include it in this section. 
 
 
 
5.4 – Contract Management, Installation, Data Conversion 
 
The Contractor will manage, convert data, and configure product so that it meets the needs of 
the Town as outlined in this RFP.   
 

Provide a detailed Project Schedule that will cover system development, meetings, database 
conversion and/or creation, training, and any other appropriate tasks. The schedule must 
indicate time estimates by major milestones and sub-tasks. 
 

5.5 – Training 
 
State the number of trainers on staff and the modules they teach for implementation purposes. 
Training should be on-site and at a time most convenient to the Town so not to disrupt office 
productivity and customer service.  

 
Training documentation should be provided including an electronic copy. The Contractor must 
provide a complete application training outline for Town staff including system, operation, and 
use of all software included with the system.  

 
The Contractor will present the recommended training in outline form showing subject title and 
length of time required.  Describe the contractor’s support staff that will be available to the 
Town after implementation is complete. 

 
5.6 – Product Documentation 
 
This section should contain product documentation of the items you are including in the system.  
Include any other documentation you think may be pertinent to the system. 
 
 
 

103 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page - 13 

 

6.0 PRICING AND PAYMENT TERMS 
 
Systems pricing will be based on a turnkey installation and will include the 
following: 
 

• All training expenses;  
• No taxes (the Town is exempt from Florida sales and excise taxes);  
• Any other charges necessary to complete a turnkey installation. 

 
Prices shown for system shall be complete and shall include all installation, configuration, 
training, conversion, documentation and any other charges necessary. Proposed pricing shall 
be held available for at least 120 days from proposal opening.  
 
 
Billing by Contractor: 
1.  The Contractor shall provide invoices to the Town of Loxahatchee Groves in a timely    

  manner. 
 

2.  Each request for payment will clearly include the Purchase Order/Work Authorization 
number issued by the Town before it will be considered for payment. 
 

3. Each invoice must provide sufficient detail reflecting services performed. 
 
 
Payment by Town: 
1.  The Town will make payments  as  work  progresses  based  on  90%  of  the  

Contractor's  approved  monthly invoices.  
  

2. The final 10% will be withheld until after the system has been accepted by the Town.  
Final payment by Town will not be made until System(s) have been accepted as in 7.0 
System Acceptance. 

 
The Town reserves the right to take advantage of any system changes or software upgrades 
prior to final acceptance. 

104 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page - 14 

 

 
7.0 SYSTEM ACCEPTANCE 

 
System acceptance will take place upon demonstration by the Contractor that the 
requirements of this RFP have been met and that all Contractor services are in place and 
working without malfunction.   
 
Systems acceptance will include:  
 
1) Demonstration that all modules, features, etc. have all been provided as ordered and are in 
proper working order;    
 
2)  Verification   that   all   preliminary   documentation   has   been   delivered;    
 
3) Confirmation that troubles reported within two weeks of completed installation have been 
resolved;  
 
4) Reconciliation of all charges. 

 
Final acceptance by Town will be evidenced by final payment. Final payment by Town will not 
be made until System(s) have been accepted as defined above.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

105 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SaaS Municipal Software RFP 
Page - 15 

 

8.0 ADDITIONAL FORMS 
 

   All forms must be completed, signed and returned and included as part of the PROPOSER’S    
   complete Proposal. 
 
         8.1 Proposal Acknowledgement Form 

         8.2 Municipal Proposal Form 

         8.3 Proposal Proposal Form 

         8.4 Certificate of Authority 

         8.5 Insurance Requirements 

         8.6 Affirmative Action Policy  

         8.7 Non-Collusive Affidavit 
          
 

106 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 PR

PROPOSAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT COVER PAGE 
 

SUBMIT BIDS TO:      
Town of Loxahatchee Groves   
Attn: Clerk’s Office 
14579 Southern Blvd., Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

REFER ALL INQUIRIES TO PRIMARY CONTACT: 
Town Manager 
14579 Southern Blvd, Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
Ph:(561) 793-2418/Fax: (561) 793-2420 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
PROPOSAL REQUEST  

 
BID TITLE:    
               Integrated Municipal Financial System Software as a Service  (SaaS)    

BID NO:  
                  2014-01

 
NAME OF FIRM, ENTITY, or  ORGANIZATION:        
 

NAME OF CONTACT PERSON VENDOR MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
 

CITY: 
 

ZIP: 
 
 

STATE: 
 
 

TITLE VENDOR HEADQUARTERS ADDRESS (IF DIFFERENT): 
 
 

CITY: 
 

ZIP: 
 

STATE:  

PHONE NUMBER:      FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (EIN):      

EMAIL ADDRESS:      
 

STATE OF FLORIDA BUSINESS LICENSE NUMBER (IF APPLICABLE)      

FAX NUMBER:      
 

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE (Please Check One): 

Corporation   Partnership    PROPRIETORSHIP    Joint Venture   Other    
If Corporation, please provide the following: 
 

(A) Date of Incorporation:   ________________________________             (B)  State or 
Country of Incorporation:  

                                                                     Month        /          Day          /            Year 

I certify that this RFP is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm, or person submitting a RFP for the same 
materials, supplies or equipment, and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. I agree to abide by all terms and conditions of this RFP and 
certify that I am authorized to sign this RFP for the proposer and that the proposer is in compliance with all requirements of the RFP, including but 
not limited to, certification requirements.                   
 
 

                                            

                                                                                                     /                                                                                                                      / 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE (MANUAL)                                      AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE (PRINT OR TYPED)                                        TITLE (PRINT OR TYPED)        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Form 8.1

107 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text



RFP PROPOSAL FORM 
RFP NO. 2014-01 

 
 

Bid Form 8.2  
 

TO:  Town Manager 
        Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
        14579 Southern Boulevard, Suite 2 
        Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
 
The undersigned, as Proposer, does hereby declare that he/she has read the Introduction, 
Procedures, General Requirements, Insurance Requirements, General Specification, Proposal 
Forms, and any other documentation for 
 

          Municipal Financial System Software as a Service (SaaS)  
           and related implementation services 

 
and further agrees to furnish all items listed below in accordance with the Price(s) submitted.  The 
above-specified documents are herein incorporated into the Proposal Form and shall be defined as 
the contract documents.  The Town is requesting proposals and prices for 2 concurrent licenses 
(seats) which will allow the Town’s staff to input data elements, and print both reports and accounts 
payables checks on local multi-purpose copier, printer, scanner. 
 

System Initiation Initial Fee Annual Fee (If Applicable) 

Installation $ $ 

Conversion $ N/A 

Training $ $ 
On-going Training $ N/A 

Service Description Per Seat Monthly 
Fee 

Annual Fee 

 $  
  $  
 $  
 $  

  

Please provide other pertinent information the Town needs to understand and associated cost 
analysis below (if more space is needed include an additional page) : 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

108 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP PROPOSAL FORM 
RFP NO. 2014-01 

 
 

Bid Form 8.2  
 

Total Start-up Costs: $ 
Total Annual Fees: $ 
Total First 12 Month Cost: $ 
Total Monthly Cost in Year 2 $ 
Total Monthly Cost in Year 3 $ 
Total Monthly Cost in Year 4 $ 
Total Monthly Cost in Year 5 $ 
 
 
 
Notice Needed Prior to Commencement:_________calendar days. 
 

NOTE:  Town of Loxahatchee Groves official proposal openings are open to the public.  Citizens 
and submitting proposals are encouraged to attend.  However, if you are unable to attend, but wish 
to obtain the unofficial results, you may do so by visiting our website at 
www.loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov under Bids.  No information regarding the submittal will be divulged 
over the telephone. 
 
Name of Bidder:________________________________________________________ 

109 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov/


Form 8.3  
 

MUNICIPAL PROPOSAL FORM 
 

The undersigned agrees that he/she has read the proposal documents including the 
Procedure, General Requirements, and Insurance Requirements and General 
Specifications, and agrees to the terms and conditions set forth therein.  
 

Proposer specifically understands that the Town reserves the right to contract with as 
many vendors as it deems necessary for an integrated Municipal Financial Software 
System Solution as a Service and related implementation services.   
 
Proposer further agrees that this Proposal is not made jointly or in conjunction, 
cooperation or collusion with any person, firm, corporation or other legal entity. 
  
 
 
Submitted by Authorized Agent: 

Signature 

Print Name & Title 

 

110 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Form 8.4  
 

Certification Form (Page 1 of 4) 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 
(IF CORPORATION) 

STATE OF ) 

)   SS: 

COUNTY OF ) 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a meeting of the Board of Directors of the ____________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

                       

a corporation existing under the laws of the State of    ________________ , held on   ___________  ____ , 20______ , the 
following resolution was duly passed and adopted: 

 

"RESOLVED, that, as President of the Corporation, be and is hereby authorized to execute the Proposal or Bid dated,   
__________________, 20_____  , to the Town of Loxahatchee Groves and this corporation and that their execution 
thereof, attested by the Secretary of the Corporation, and with the Corporate Seal affixed, shall be the official act and deed 
of this Corporation." 

 

I further certify that said resolution is now in full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the corporation this   _______ , 
day of ______________ , 20____  . 

 

                                     

Secretary: _______________________ 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN, AND RETURN THIS FORM MAY DISQUALIFY RESPONSE.

111 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Form 8.4  

 
Certification Form (Page 2 of 4) 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 
(IF PARTNERSHIP) 

 

 

STATE OF  ) 

)   SS: 

COUNTY OF  ) 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a meeting of the Partners of the   ________________________________________               

_________________________________________________________________________________________           

organized and existing under the laws of the State of ____________________________ , held on  
_______________ , 20 _______ , the following resolution was duly passed and adopted: 

 

"RESOLVED, that, ____________________ , as________________________  of the Partnership, be and is hereby 
authorized to execute the Proposal or Bid dated,______________ 20_______ , to the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
and this partnership and that their execution thereof, attested by the ______________ 

________________________ shall be the official act and deed of this Partnership." 

 

I further certify that said resolution is now in full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this ______________ , day of _______,  

20________. 

 

 

Secretary: _______________________________ 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN, AND RETURN THIS FORM MAY DISQUALIFY RESPONSE. 

112 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Form 8.4 

Certification Form (Page 3 of 4) 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 
(IF JOINT VENTURE) 

 
 

STATE OF   ) 

)   SS: 

COUNTY OF   ) 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a meeting of the Principals of the___________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of __________________________________________ , held on 
_____________________________ , 20__________ , the following resolution was duly passed and adopted: 

"RESOLVED, that,_____________________________________ as ____________________ of the Joint Venture 
be and is hereby authorized to execute the Proposal or Bid dated,___________________ 20____ , to the Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves and this Joint Venture and that their execution thereof, attested by the ______________ 

________________________ shall be the official act and deed of this Joint Venture." 

I further certify that said resolution is now in full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this____________ , day of                         
_____________________ , 20______ . 

 

 

Secretary: ______________________________ 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN, AND RETURN THIS FORM MAY DISQUALIFY RESPONSE. 

113 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Form 8.4 

Certification Form (Page 4 of 4) 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 
(OTHER) 

STATE OF ) 

COUNTY OF ) 

 

I _____________________________________________________, __________________________  of ________ 
                             (Signer’s Name)                                                                                                              (Title)      
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________                      
                                                                                                        (Name of Entity)      
An entity lawfully organized and existing under the laws of the State of ______________________,the following  

Resolution was duly passed and adopted on _______ day of _______________________, 2013.    
 

"RESOLVED, that, ____________________________________, as _______________________ of  
                                                           (Signer’s Name)                                                                           (Title) 
 
 
                                                                                        (Name of Entity) 
 
 In accordance with all of its documents of governance and management and the laws of the State of  
 
_______________ is empowered and authorized on behalf of ___________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                    (Name of Entity) 
 
to execute the Proposal or Bid dated, _____________________, 20_____ , to the Town of Loxahatchee Groves and  
 
_______________________________________________________________________  and that their execution  
                                                                             (Name of Entity) 
thereof, attested by the Secretary of the _____________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                 (Name of Entity) 
 
 ,and with the Official Seal affixed, shall be the official act and deed __________________________________  
                  (Name of Entity) 
____________________________________________________________." 
 

I further certify that said resolution is now in full force and effect. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of  
 
______________________________________________, this _______ , day of ______________ , 2013. 
                          (Name of  Entity) 

                                   

Secretary: _______________________ 

 

(SEAL) 

 
FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN, AND RETURN THIS FORM MAY DISQUALIFY RESPONSE. 
 

114 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Form B.5  
 

Indemnification and Insurance 
 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 
Successful Proposer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Town and its officials, employees and agents 
(collectively referred to as “Indemnities”) and each of them from and against all loss, cost, penalties, fines, damages, 
claims, expenses (including attorney’s fees) or liabilities (collectively referred to as “Liabilities”) by reason of any injury to 
or death of any person or damage to or destruction or loss of any property arising out of, resulting from, or in connection 
with (i) the performance or non-performance of the services contemplated by the Contract which is or is alleged to be 
directly or indirectly caused, in whole or in part, by any act, omission, default or negligence (whether active or passive) of 
Successful Proposer or its employees, agents, or subcontractors (collectively referred to as “Proposer”), regardless of 
whether it is, or is alleged to be, caused in whole or part (whether joint, concurrent, or contributing) by any act, omission, 
default or negligence (whether active or passive) of the Indemnities, or any of them or (ii) the failure of the Successful 
Proposer  to comply with any of the provisions in the Contract or the failure of the Successful Proposer to conform to 
statutes, ordinances or other regulations or requirements of any governmental authority, federal or state, in connection with 
the performance of the Contract. Successful Proposer expressly agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnities, or 
any of them, from and against all liabilities which may be asserted by an employee or former employee of Proposer, or any 
of its subcontractors, as provided above, for which the Successful Proposer’s liability to such employee or former employee 
would otherwise be limited to payments under state Workers’ Compensation or similar laws. 
 
Successful Proposer further agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Indemnities from and against (i) any and all 
Liabilities imposed on account of the violation of any law, ordinance, order, rule, regulation, condition, or requirement, in 
any way related, directly or indirectly, to Successful Proposer’s performance under the Contract, compliance with which is 
left by the Contract to the Proposer, and (ii) any and all claims, and/or suits for labor and materials furnished by the 
Successful Proposer or utilized in the performance of the Contract or otherwise. 
 
Where not specifically prohibited by law, Successful Proposer further specifically agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless the Indemnities from all claims and suits for any liability, including, but not limited to, injury, death, or damage to 
any person or property whatsoever, caused by, arising from, incident to, connected with or growing out of the performance 
or non-performance of the Contract which is, or is alleged to be, caused in part (whether joint, concurrent or contributing) 
or in whole by any act, omission, default, or negligence (whether active or passive) of the Indemnities.  The foregoing 
indemnity shall also include liability imposed by any doctrine of strict liability. 
  
The Successful Proposer shall furnish to Town of Loxahatchee Groves, c/o Town Manager, 14579 Southern Boulevard, 
Suite 2, Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 33470, Certificate(s) of Insurance prior to contract execution which indicate that 
insurance coverage has been obtained which meets the requirements as outlined below: 
 
A. Workers’ Compensation Insurance for all employees of the Proposer as required by Florida Statute 440. 
B. Public Liability Insurance on a comprehensive basis in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 combined single 

limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  TOWN must be shown as an additional insured with 
respect to this coverage. 

C. Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used in connection with the 
work in an amount not less than statutory combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage. 

 
 
The insurance coverage required shall include those classifications, as listed in standard liability insurance manuals, which 
most nearly reflect the operations of the Successful Proposer.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

115 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Form B.5  
 

Indemnification and Insurance (cont.) 
 
All insurance policies required above shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of 
Florida, with the following qualifications: 
 

The Company must be rated no less than “A” as to management, and no less than “Class X” as 
to financial strength, by the latest edition of Best’s Key Rating Insurance Guide or acceptance 
of insurance company which holds a valid Florida Certificate of Authority issued by the State 
of Florida, Department of Insurance, and are members of the Florida Guarantee Fund. 
 

Certificates will indicate no modification or change in insurance shall be made without thirty (30) days written advance 
notice to the certificate holder. 
 
Compliance with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the Successful Proposer of his liability and obligation under 
this section or under any other section of this Agreement. 
 
The Successful Proposer shall be responsible for assuring that the insurance certificates required in conjunction with this 
Section remain in force for the duration of the contractual period; including any and all option terms that may be granted 
to the Successful Proposer. 
 
--If insurance certificates are scheduled to expire during the contractual period, the Successful Proposer shall be 
responsible for submitting new or renewed insurance certificates to the Town at a minimum of ten (10) calendar days in 
advance of such expiration. 
 
--In the event that expired certificates are not replaced with new or renewed certificates which cover the contractual 
period, the Town shall: 
 
A) Suspend the Contract until such time as the new or renewed certificates are received by the Town in the manner 

prescribed in the Request for Proposals or Invitation to Bid. 
 
B) The Town may, at its sole discretion, terminate the Contract for cause and seek re-procurement damages from the 

Successful Proposer in conjunction with the violation of the terms and conditions of the Contract.                                                 
 
The undersigned Proposer acknowledges that (s)he has read the above information and agrees to comply with all the above 
Town requirements. 
 
 
 
Proposer: ____________________________ Signature:      
            (Company name)     
 
Date: _____________________________ Print Name:  _     
 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN, AND RETURN THIS FORM MAY DISQUALIFY YOUR 
RESPONSE 
 

116 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Form 
8.6 

 

 

Sample Affirmative Action Policy 
For Equal Employment Opportunity 

 
 

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY - POLICY STATEMENT 

 
 
It is the policy of (Company Name) to base its hiring and promotions on merit, qualifications and 
competency and that its personnel practices will not be influenced by an applicant’s or employee’s race, 
color, place of birth, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status, veteran and handicapped status. 
 
One of the management duties of all principals at (Company Name) is to ensure that the following 
personnel practices are being satisfied: 
 
1. Take every necessary affirmative action to attract and retain qualified employees, regardless of race, 

color, place of birth, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status, veteran and handicapped 
status. 

 
2. Maintain equitable principles in the recruitment, hiring, training, compensation and promotion of 

employees. 
 
3. Monitor and review personnel practices to guarantee that equal opportunities are being provided to 

all employees, regardless of race, color, place of birth, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital 
status, veteran and handicapped status. 

 
(Company Name) is committed to take affirmative action and aggressively pursue activities that will serve 
to enable all employees and applicants opportunities available throughout this organization. 
 
Clearly, the above actions cannot be accomplished as a secondary duty for any individual, despite the full 
support of management.  And so, to monitor our efforts, (Company Name) has assigned one of its 
principals as the Affirmative Action Director to monitor all activities of this program. 
 
Employees may contact (Name of assigned principal) at (telephone number) regarding this Affirmative 
Action Policy. 
 
 

 DATE: ______________________________________ 

 (SIGNATURE/TITLE): ______________________________________ 

 

 

 

 
FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN, AND RETURN THIS FORM MAY DISQUALIFY YOUR 
RESPONSE. 
 

117 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Form 8.7  
 

Non-Collusive Affidavit 
 

  
State of                                        )                         County of                                    ) 
 
                                                          being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 
(1) He/she is the                                                                       of  the Proposer that has                                           
          (Owner, Partner, Officer, Representative or Agent) 
 
submitted the attached proposal; 
He/she is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached proposal and of 
all pertinent circumstances respecting such proposal; 
Such proposal is genuine and is not a collusive or sham proposal; 
Neither the said Proposer nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, 
employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired, 
connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other Proposer, firm, or person to submit a 
collusive or sham proposal in connection with the work for which the attached proposal has been 
submitted; or to refrain from bidding in connection with such work; or have in any manner, 
directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion, or communication, or conference with 
and Proposer, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached proposal or of any other 
Proposer, or to fix an overhead, profit, or cost elements of the proposal price or the proposal 
price of any other Proposer, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or 
unlawful agreement any advantage against (Recipient), or any person interested in the proposed 
work; 
The price or prices quoted in the attached proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any 
collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Proposer or any other 
of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant. 
 
Signed, sealed and delivered 
In the presence of: 
                                                            By:                                                                
 
                                                             _____________________________                                                                     
           (printed name and title) 
State of                                           
County of                                       
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this            day of _______________                                    
 
20     , by                                                 , who is personally known to me or who has produced  
                                                                As identification and who did (did not) take an oath. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal 
 
                                                                                                                                     
Notary Public          (Name of Notary Public: Print/Stamp)                      
 

118 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.c. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Road Improvement Policy 

119 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Methodology for the Prioritization of Town Roads Improvements 
 

Page 1 of 2 
Underwood Management Services Group, LLC 

 
 

 

 

Goal:  The Town shall balance the public service needs of the community with the fiscal capabilities.  
New programs, services, or facilities shall be based on general citizen demand, need, or legislative 
mandate. The Town shall provide funding for public services on a fair and equitable basis, and shall not 
discriminate. 
 

1. Incorporate existing Town roads provided by LGWCD into plan to meet the Goals of service 
needs, fiscal capabilities managed on a fair and equitable basis. 

a. Existing OGEM roads are now Town roads at a construction price of about $1.5 million 

i. Excess borrowed funds in LGWCD used to liquidate ~$1.0 million outstanding 
loan 

ii. Funding provided from transfer to LGWCD discontinued  

iii. Town annually appropriates $150,000 to pay for existing transferred roads 

2.  What funding level is the Town willing to commit? 

a.  Millage increase  

b. Reduction in expenses 

c. Bond Referendum through dedicated millage 

d. Expansion of other revenue sources  
 

3. Establishment of prioritization 

a. Road improvements should be based on a cost benefit analysis, i.e., the greatest benefit 
to the most people at the least cost per capita   

 
i. Would residents on prioritized Roads be in favor of such improvements?  

b. Random selection for improvements  

i. Would residents on random selection be in favor of such improvements?  

c. Improve Roads classified in the most deteriorated conditions  

i. Would residents on road classified in the most deteriorated conditions be in 
favor of such improvements?  

 
4. Selection of Identified Roads 

a. Cost Benefit Analysis for selection for funding  

b. Random selection for funding (pulling out of a hat)  

   

120 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Methodology for the Prioritization of Town Roads Improvements 
 

Page 2 of 2 
Underwood Management Services Group, LLC 

 
 

 

5. Upon identification and consent for selected road improvement by citizens 

a. Legal requirements are completed 

b. Survey completed if necessary  

c. Plan & Design Bid Specifications for Improvements by Town Engineers  

d. Drainage accommodation with respect to improvements 

121 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.d. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Piggybacking – North Florida Emulsions 

122 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



123 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



124 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



125 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



126 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



127 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



128 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



129 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



130 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



131 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



132 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



133 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



134 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



135 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



136 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



137 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



138 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



139 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



140 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



141 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



142 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



143 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



144 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



145 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



146 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



147 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



148 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



149 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



150 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



151 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



152 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



153 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



154 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



155 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



156 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



157 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



158 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



159 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



160 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



161 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



162 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



163 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



164 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



165 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



166 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



167 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



168 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



169 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



170 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



171 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



172 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



173 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



174 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



175 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



176 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



177 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



178 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



179 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



180 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



181 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



182 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



183 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



184 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



185 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



186 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



187 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



188 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



189 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



190 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



191 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



192 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



193 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



194 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



195 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



196 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



197 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



198 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



199 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



200 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



201 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



202 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



203 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



204 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



205 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.e. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Speed Humps  

(No backup provided) 

206 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 10.a. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Gas Tax Map Modifications 

207 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
TO:  Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM: Braeden Garrett, Town Planning Technician   
 
THROUGH: Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:            April 9, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:      2014 Gas Tax Map Amendments 
   
I.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
Each year the Town must certify the official Gas Tax Map from Palm Beach County.  The objective is to 
provide Palm Beach County with the necessary feedback so that they can most accurately calculate the number 
of our municipally maintained lane-miles.  The data is then forwarded to Tallahassee to determine the 
distribution of gasoline taxes to each municipality.   
   
II. DISCUSSION 
 
It is the Town’s responsibility to check all of the roads within our boundaries for any discrepancies.  Any 
comments or revisions must be documented and returned by April 30th, 2014.  
 
Town Management has received several requests to remove residents’ roads from the Gas Tax Map, and the 
Town’s Public Works Vendor has verified the requested roads.  During his annual check of the roads, the Public 
Works Vendor has also noted several private/gated roads that need to be removed as well.  The following roads 
and mileage are as follows: 
 

1. Timberlane Place – Beginning at 15201/15202 and continuing until the terminus for a total of 960 feet.   
2. 13th Place North – The entire road is a private access for the two properties (same owner) that it serves.  

Total distance being removed is 1,320 feet. 
3. 11th Lane North – Beginning at 13161 and continuing to the terminus for a total of 450 feet. 
4. Perkins Drive – The entire road was built and has been maintained by the Perkins’.  The total distance 

being removed is 2,790 feet.   
5. Shamrock & B Road – Gated and fenced for a total of 1,600 feet. 
6. Fortner Drive & C Road – Gated and fenced for a total of 1,240 feet. 
7. 30th Court & D Road – Gated and fenced for a total of 1,200 feet. 
8. 27th Lane N & D Road – Gated and fenced for a total of 1,200 feet. 
9. Paddlefoot & E Road - Gated and fenced for total of 800 feet. 
10. Great Dane Lane & G Road West – Gated and fenced for a total of 800 feet. 
 
Each road that is up for removal has been identified in Exhibit A.  The total number of lane-miles that are 
proposed for removal from the Gas Tax Map: 2.34 miles.   

 
III. FISCAL IMPACT 
 

208 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



• There will be a decrease in the amount of gasoline tax that the Town will receive after the removal of 
lane-miles.  

 
IV. ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Exhibit A 
 

V. RRECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Town Management recommends the approval of the elimination of the documented roads from the Gas Tax 
Map.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

209 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 
SECTIONS OF THE GAS TAX MAP IDENTIFIYING TIMBERLANE PLACE, 13TH PLACE NORTH, 11TH 
LANE NORTH, PERKINS DRIVE, SHAMROCK DRIVE, FORTNER DRIVE, 30TH COURT, 27TH LANE 
NORTH, PADDLEFOOT LANE, GREAT DANE LANE. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

210 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

211 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

212 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

213 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

214 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 10.c. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Marianna Miles, 3413 B Road 

Re OGEM  

215 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



April 9, 2014 
 
Re: North B Road residence that have Direct access to B Road 
 
Dear Council Members, 
  
There are a total of 531 acres that have direct access on and off B Road. Those residences have 
no other road as a choice to use when coming out of their property.  I sent 60 letters out with 
return, stamped envelopes asking the residence who are affected asking them if they want 
OGEM or not and to respond back to me either way. 
 
I received YES from 20 people totaling 199 acres. 
 
I received NO from 7 people totaling 66 acres (including 1 letter with no name and no acreage 
total). 
 
265 acres responded and 266 did not respond at all. 
 
Since the letter dated 9/16/13 was sent, 4 properties have been purchased on B Road. I have sent 
a letter today 4/9/14 to 3 of them and I await their response if any. The 4th was purchased by 
Lawrence Corning who already said no. My total reflects 5 more acres for him giving him a total 
of 20 acres not 15 as stated on his original paper he sent to me. 
 
I have approached the board for brief moments in the past and have handed in letters and maps. 
The issue of putting OGEM on North B Road hasn't been discussed with me for any length of 
time. I have been waiting all this time because I realize the board has had other pressing issues 
and I feel this deserves some attention. 
  
B Road North has become a major cut through road since the other roads have been done. There 
are semi's that cut through every day. Traffic also has increased coming from 40th and 140th. 
The dirt on our road is continuing to blow away which I'm sure is costing a lot of money. That 
cost gets handed to the residence of B Road. Our Fences, trees, and automobiles all look we live 
in the gutter. Not to mention the poor people riding bikes that are getting dusted or have to 
endure the washboard effect of the road when the conditions are bad. 
 
You (as the Board) all know how our roads are, and the cost to maintain them every day. I am 
here to state that the people that say YES really want the OGEM. Some of the people that didn't 
respond I'm sure that they would want it (so I’ve heard) but can't afford it. There are also the 
people who don't like the speed humps. 
 
When the vote happened, the YES votes would have outweighed the NO votes if it would have 
been based on the residences that have direct access to B Road. 
 
I am asking the board to really consider doing B Road with OGEM. 
  
Thank you Marianne Miles 

216 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



217 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



218 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



219 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



220 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



221 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



222 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



223 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



224 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



225 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



226 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



227 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



228 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



229 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



230 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



231 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



232 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



233 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



234 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



235 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



236 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



237 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



238 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



239 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



240 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



241 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



242 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



243 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



244 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



245 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



246 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 11.b. 

TOWN ATTORNEY 

Request for Shade Meeting 

247 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Good morning, please add the following under Town Attorney Report for the April 15, 2014, Town 
Council meeting: 
 
Request for Town Council to conduct a closed door meeting pursuant to Section 286.011(8), Florida 
Statutes, for the pending case of Loxahatchee Groves adv. Day, Palm Beach County Circuit Court Case # 
50 2012CA 014543XXXXMB.  Town’s litigation defense counsel Michael Burke, Esquire, is available for a 
meeting prior to the regular May 6, 2014, Town Council meeting, to start at 6:00 pm.  The meeting 
should take approximately 30-45 minutes.   
 
Thank you.     
 
Michael D. Cirullo, Jr.  
GOREN, CHEROF, DOODY & EZROL, P.A.  
3099 East Commercial Boulevard, Suite 200  
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308  
Telephone (954) 771-4500 x 325 * Fax (954) 771-4923  
Email: MCirullo@cityatty.com  
www.cityatty.com  
 
Offices in Fort Lauderdale and Delray Beach, Florida. 

 

248 of 248   04/15/2014  TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:MCirullo@cityatty.com
http://www.cityatty.com/

	AGENDA
	2.a. Consent Agenda Minutes
	2.b. Consent Agenda Swerdlin Road Issues
	4.a. Presentations Christine Davis LGES PTO
	5. Committee Reports - NONE
	6. Resolutions - NONE
	7. Ordinance No. 2014-03
	8. Administrative Update - No Backup
	9.a. Old Business Town Management Services
	9.b. Old Business Financial System Software
	9.c. Old Business Road Improvement Policy
	9.d. Old Business Piggybacking North Florida Emulsions
	9.e. Old Business Speed Humps No Backup
	10.a. New Business Gas Tax Map
	10.b. New Business Marianne Miles B Road
	11.b. Town Attorney Shade Meeting

	NAME OF FIRM ENTITY or  ORGANIZATION: 
	NAME OF CONTACT PERSON: 
	VENDOR MAILING ADDRESS: 
	CITY: 
	ZIP: 
	STATE: 
	TITLE: 
	VENDOR HEADQUARTERS ADDRESS IF DIFFERENT: 
	CITY_2: 
	ZIP_2: 
	STATE_2: 
	PHONE NUMBER: 
	FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER EIN: 
	EMAIL ADDRESS: 
	FAX NUMBER: 
	STATE OF FLORIDA BUSINESS LICENSE NUMBER IF APPLICABLE: 
	Corporation: Off
	Partnership: Off
	PROPRIETORSHIP: Off
	Joint Venture: Off
	Other: Off
	Date of Incorporation: 


